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Tao the Members of PNC Gomti Highways Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of PNC Gomti Highways Private Limited
(the “company™), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and
statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give & true and fair view In conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income , and Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing [5As) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for The Awdit of Finendal Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Information Other than the Financial 5tatements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Director's report but does not Include the Financial Statements
and our suditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other Infarmation and
nat express any form of assurance conclusion therean.
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thera is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section of
134(5) of the companies’ act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company In sccordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also incledes maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
todo 5o,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting procass,

Auditor's Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
a5 a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always
detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Staterments.

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Financial Siatements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the companies (auditor's report) rules, 2020{"the order”issued by



central Government of India in terms of the sub section {11) of the section 143 of the
act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and
4 of the order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as It appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, and statement of cash flows and Statement of
changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements
summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information dealt
with in this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rulas, 2016.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a directer in terms
of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure C.

With respeck to the other matters to be included in Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations ghven to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements to the Ind AS financial statements, if any.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

This clawse is omitted.




vi.

Wil

2)

3)

advanced or loaned or invested [ either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the company to or in any
other person{s] or entitylies), including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company("ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the ultimate beneficaries;

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
befief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities(*Funding Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or othenwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirecthy
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company("ultimate beneficiary") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has
caused ws to belleva that the representations under sub clause (1) and {2}
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As per information and explanations given and based on our examination, which
include test checks ,the company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit fog) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all the transactions recorded in the
software Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trial feature being tampered with ,and the audit trial has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For RMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

M. No. 405219
Date: 19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PNC GOMTI HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 5tatements

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
s ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud -or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulting
from frawd is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
= Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concermn, |f we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
refated disclosures in the Financial Statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to caase to continue as a going concer.
¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in Internal contral that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For RMA B Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: ODDS7EN /NS

M.No. 205219
Date:19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra
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“ANMNEXURE C" to the independent auditor's report of even date on the financial
staterments of PNC Gomti Highways Private Limited for the Year Ended March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I} of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PNC GOMTI
HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial 5tatements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Contrals.

The Company's management i responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on these responsibilities include the design, impiementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policias, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsiblility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
aver financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
*Guidance Mote®) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed o be
prescribed under section 143({10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical reguirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial corgrols system over financlal reporting and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
‘pbtaining  an understanding of Internal financial controls ower financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We befleve that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficlent and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes In accordance with generaily
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detall, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the compamy;

{2] provide reasonable assurance that transacthons are recorded as necessary o permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and,

(3] Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, vse, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financlal Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals aver Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controis,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorabe.

Dpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over finandial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025.

For RMA & Associates LLP
(Chartered Accountants)

Partner
M. No.405219

Date: 16-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra
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BNC Gomt Highways Private Limited
CIM L S205UP2 02 0PTC1 28041
Balance Sheat as al March 31, 2035

[1 in lakchs)
Parth Az at Asak
i Bites March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
1] Mon- Current Assets
(3] Property, plant and eguipmen 4 (il -
ikl Financisl Assers
11l Gervice Concession Hecenvabls 3 R e ] £1,126.93
i} Oimer Peon - Clerent Asels 4 5, 209.91 B Bﬁ-ﬂ“ﬂ‘
Sub Total (Nen-Currend Assats) M E;E.ﬂﬂ
(1] Curreat Assets
fa] FEnancial Agiets
[l Trade Recervables 5 S4.87 68117
[{#] vesiments g 147952 -
fiif)  Cash ard Cail Equiseslents 7 £473.47 207.35
{6l Othar Currant Assets i 2,E56.94 119.06
Sub Total [Current Assets) E,664.79 387.57
Total Assets [ A+B | 67,1TR.O7 7048165
EQUITY AMND LIASILITIES
EQUITY
{a} Equity Share Capital 3 7,13L00 7,131.00
{b] Other Boulty 12 [157.23) [35.R2)
Suh Total [Equity] E,973.78 7,005, 18
LIABILITIES
[1)  Bon - Cummend Lisbadities
{a} Financal Liabilities
1l Bofowings 11 55,165, 72 S6.111.60
{b] Prowiions 1 8.53 s
Sub Total {Non Current Liabifity) 55 175,64 56,111, 50
(2] Cwment Lisbilities
fa] Fnanciad Liabilipes
[l Bomowings 13 345563 4,738.70
] Trade Payables 14 10459 255272
[iiE)  Other Fnarcial Liabillthes 15 TaLa 386 05
{6l Cahar Currant Liakilities 16 2.64 9,12
i} Provesions 17 1,353.25 58.29 |
Sub Tatal {Current Uabdlity] 5,028.65 T.175.E7
Total Equity & Lisbdlities 67,178.07 T HET. 5
Summary af Materlal Accounting Polides infarmation i
The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 an integral part ol the theis financial statements
In terrs of our report af even date attached For and on Behalf of the Beard of Directors
PRC Gomiti Highways Private Limited
For RMA & Associate WP~ Pavan Kurmar Tallurl Raghupat| Rag
- hanaging Nroctor
! ' Diak- CrOsERETL
; | e 1 J I
2L Adlﬂwlu Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

FAN- ELGP53043M




PHC Gormdi Highways Private Limited
CIN LasSHSUPI020PTCEZE04 1
Staterment of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31 2025

{ iin lakhs)
Yoar Ended Yoar Endad
ke Notes FAErch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I |Reverue from Operatons 18 733357 43,523, 50
I |Ofker nCoaTse 149 25740 B4 .52
Total bncome {1} 759137 12,590.12
Il |ENPENSES
Emplayes Bensfit Expense 20 14617 a.50
Finanos Cost 21 4 8¥1.20 450893
Depreciation & Amortization Expensas 2 oz -
Other Experses 22 1,185.54 18,033.18
Total Enpenses (1} E 15293 22542 71
IV |Profitf{Loss) Before Tax (I-IV) 143884 447.41
¥ |Exceptional izms
Wl |Profit/{Loss) Before Tax [V-V1) 143844 44741
Vil |Tax Expense :
LCurrent Tax 133015 565,71
Deferred Tax - -
Taxzs for Earfier Years 21370 3.80
Wil |Profit & [Losa) for the period [V-V) [121.41) {122.11]
1% |[Cther Comprehensive Income
A [[1} sems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
- Acturiai Gain and kosses on defened benefit plans -
W] Incoeme tax refating 1o above mems + =
i |Total Comprehensive Income for the Paricd | Wi+l [121.41) 122.11))
Earning Per Equity Share of Rs.10/- each
Basee B Diluted (%) 23 [0.17]  joae

Semmary of Material Accownting Folicies information

The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 an integral part of the these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA B Aszociate LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN-D0097EN ) NEDD062 )
iy ." L W .II [ |

u% iy

Partnier -

. ND, 905219

Date- 19.05. 2025

Flace- Agra

EARL_

Pawan Kumar
anaging Director
DIMN- DA56E6T 1

Abhishek Sharma
Chief Financlal Officer
PAN- ELWGP53043M

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

PNC Gomiti Highways Private Limited

Q.-

Talluri Raghupati Rao

Dirgctor
DiN- 01207205

Rahul Awtani

Company Sacratary
ML NO-61531



PNC Gomti Highways Private Limited
CiN U45209UPZ020PTC128041
Staterment af Cazh Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2025

[¥in lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
SRR March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A, | Cash Flow from Dperating Activities
Wt Profit f{Loss) Before Tax & After Exceptional Items 143844 437.41
Adjustment for:
Finance cost 4,821.20 4,508.53
Diepreciation 0,02 2
Interest Income (56.87T) -
Frofit on Redemption of Mutual Fund (176.65) 191.57)
Fair valuation of Mutual Fund {23.88) 24.95
Dperating Profit [ (Loss] Before Working Capital Ehmiu 500226 4,889.72
Adjustment for Changas in Working Capital
increasef{Decrease) in Trade Payable [2,445.13) [6,071.3E)
increase/|Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (648 (1,264 65)
increase/|Decrease) in Provisions 1,274.89 -
increasef|Decrease) in Trade Receivable &30 5,275.64
Increse{Decrease) in Mon Current Financial Assets TE2%.64 (14,654 15§
increse/f|{Decrease] in Non Current Assets 3,758.24 (655,70}
Increasef|Decrease) in Current Assets {2,537 B8] B24.27
Increass/(Decrease] in Other Financial Liabilities {(313.51] 160.51
Cash Generated from/{used) from Operating Activities 13,555.33 (11,695.54)
Direct Taxes Paid [1,559.85) [255.71)
Cash [used in |/ from Operating Activities Before Extraordinary Items 11,999.48 11 951.15
Cash Generated from/{used) from Operating Activities (A} 1i,599.48 (11,951.35)
B, | Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Mutual Funds (14,580.00) 13,324.95)
Purchase of Fined Assets [¢.10) -
Redemption of Mutual Funds 13,701.02 4, 726,17
Interect Incoma S6.ET -
Met Cash | used in) f from Investing Activities (B) {1,222.21)| 1,401.22
L. | Cash Flow from Financing Activitics
Subscription of Equity Shares by Holding Com pany - 1,754.00
Proceeds from Unsecured Loan . 2.487.00
Preceads From Term Loans 2,500.00 10,984. 76
Repayment of Term Loan (3,389.95) -
Finance Cost (4,821.20) (4,508.93)
Repayment of Shart Term Unsecured Loan LB00.00) -
Met Cash | used In) [/ from Financing Activithes [C) 15..511.!5]' 10,716.83
et Cash Increase in Cash B Cash Equivalents [A+B+L) 4.266.12 166.70
Cash & Cach Equivalents in Beginning of the year 207,35 40.65
Cash & Cash Equlvalents as at the End of the year 4,473.47 207,35
The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 an integral part of the these financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PHE Gomtl Highways Private Limited
);g,,;g.- - Q_m-
For RMA & Associate LLP Pavan Kumar Tallurl Raghupatl Rao
Chartered Accountanis Managing Director Director
FRN-0009TEM/NS00062 g DN- 09563571 DiN- 31207205

L]

CA Rajlv Bajpal d r 3 c
M. MNo.-305215 Abhishek Sharma Rahul Awitani

Date- 19052025 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
Place- Agra PAN- ELHGP5S3043M M.NO-61931




PNC Gomti Highways Private Limited
CIN U45209UPZ020PTC1 2041

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A, Equity Share Capltal
(¥ in lakhs)
As at April 01, 2024 Changes during the year s
. i March 31, 2025
7.,131.00 - 7,131.00
(¥ in lakhs)
As at April 01, 2023 Changes during the i
. ’ T March 31, 2024
5.377.00 1,754.00 7,131.00
B. Other Equity
{¥ in lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars
Retained eamings Total
Balance as At April 01,2024 (35.82) {35.82)
Profit for the year {121.41) {121.41)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 121.41 (121.41
|Balance as at March 31, 2025 157.22)| (157.22
i% in lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars
sy Retained earnings Tatal
Balance As At Aprl 01,2023 86.29 BB.29
Prafit for the year [122.11} (122.11)
Dther Comprehensive Income for the year . -
Tatal comprehensive income for the year (122,11} {123.11)
{Balance as at March 31, 2024 (35.82) (35.82)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 an integral part of the these financial statements
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PMC Gomtl Highways Private Limited

In terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associate

M.No-305219
Date- 19.05 3025
Place- Agra

FAL—

(..

Pavan Kumar Tallurl Raghupati Rao
Director

DIN- 01207205

Managing Director
DiN- 95EEET1

i de
Abhishak Sharma
Chief Financial Offlcer

PAN- ELWGPS30430

Rahul Awtani
Company Secratary
M.NO-61831




Estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and In any future periods affected.

3.1 Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent Rabilities may arise from Btigation and other claims against the company. Potentlal
liebilities that have a low probability of crystalizing or are very difficult to quantity reliably, are treated as contingent liabliities,
Such llabllities are disclosed in the notes, if any, but are not provided for in the financial statements, There can be no assurance
regarding the final sutcome of these legal proceedings.

3.2 impalrment Testing
L. Judgment Is also required in evaluating the Gkelihood of collection of customer debt alter revenue has been recognized.
Thiz evaluation reguires estimates to be made, including the level of provisian to be made fer amounts with uncertakn
recovery profiles. Prowvisbons are based on historical trends in the percentage of debis which are not recowered, or on
mare details reviews of individually significant balances,

il, Datermining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any indication of iImpairment also requires judgmient, If an
indication of impairment is identified, further judgment is required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the nel pretent value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast involves cash
flow projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

3.3 Taxes
a. The company's tax change s the sum of the total current and deferred tax changes. The calculation of the company’s todal
tax charge necessarify imvohves a degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannat be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through
i formal legal process.

b, Aceruals for tax contingencies require management to make Judgments and estimates in refation to tax audit Bsues and
PERLAUTES

£ Therecognition of deferred tax assets ks based upon whether It s more fkely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable
profits will be available in the fubture agalnst which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Where the
temparary differences are related to losses, the avallability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable prafts is also
considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal
entity or tax compary in which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

3.4 Fair Valua Measurament

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market i3 determined using valuation technigues. In
applying the valeation technigues, managemeant makes maxlimum use of market Inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, a5 far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in priding the instrument. Where
applicable datdH ot cbservable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants weuld
make. Thas !ﬂmmﬂqw vary form the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting
date. For details of the key assumptions (Refer note-26)

s
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Company Information

PNC Gomti Highways Private Limited {the company] is domiclle and incorporated in india and is wholly owned subsidiary
comgany of PNC Infraholdings Limited. The company is engaged in infrastructure development of *four Lanning from Km 47.930 to
Em 107.620, lagdishpur to Faizabad section of MM-330 A% On Hybrid Annuity in the State of Uttar Pradesh.

1, Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material espects with Indian accounting standards {ind AS) notified
under sec 133 of the companias act 2013 (the Act] read with Companies |Indian accounting standard) Rules, 2015 and other
redevant provision of the Act and rules framed thereunder,

Tha Financial statements have been prepared on a historical eost basis sucept for certaln finaneial assets & Uabllites measured at
fair value.

The financlal statements are presented in Indian rupees [INR) with value roundaed off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
thereof, acceptotherwlse Indicated.

2. Significant Accounting policies adopted by company in preparation of financial statements

2.1 Praperty, Plant and Equipment

subsequent 1o initlal recognition, property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
sceumilated impalrment losses, IF any. Such cost includes the cosk of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction profects if the recognition criteria.are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciabes them separately based on their specific useful Bves. The carryng
amount of the replace part accounted for as a separate asset previously is derecognized. Likewise, when a major inspaction s
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant Jnd equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All sther repair and maintenance cost are recognlzed in the statement of profit and loss when incwrred. The present
value af the expected eost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use Is induded In the cost of the respective asset il the
recognition eriteria for a provision are met,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment i provided on written down value basis as per the rate derived on the basis of
useful life and method prescribed under schadule-1l of the companies Act, 2013,

The residual values, usefid lives and methods of depreciation of property, pltant and equipment are reviewed st each reporting
date and adjusted prospectively, If appropriate.

impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there &5 any indication of
Irmpairment Based on Internal fexternal factors. An asset (s treated as impaired when the carnging amount exceeds its recoverable
value, The recoversble amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in wse. In @sessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value using a per-tad discount rate that reflects current market
assesement of the tiree value of money and risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss i charged o the stetement of profit
and foss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of lh!‘imiét over ks remaining useful [ife. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting perbods Is reversed by
crediting to the'statgment of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
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2.2 Service Concession Agresments

The Company constructs & upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public service and
operates and maintaing that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time.

These arrangements may incude Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession amrangement for its entlre useful
fife. Under Appendix C to ind AS 115 - Service Concession Arrangaments, thesa arrangements are accounted for based on the
nature of the consideration. Thie Financial asset model is used to the extent that the operator has an unconditionzl conbractual
right to recelve cash ar another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. IF the company
performs more than one service (Le. construction or upgrade fervices and operalion services) under a single contract or
amangement, conslderation received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered,
when the amounts are separately identifiable.

in the finsndal asset modal, the amount due from the grantor meets the identification of the recevable which s maaswred at fair
walue. It is subsequently measured at amortized cost. The amount initlally recognived plues cumadative interest on that amount is
calculatad using the affective interest method, Any aseet carfied under concession agreements i defecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when contractual right to the financlal assets
EXpires.

Revenue related to SCA:
Revenue relatad to construction under @ service concassion arrangament is recognized based on the stage of completion of the
wiork performed.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognired to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow and the revenue can be refiably
mexured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recefved or receivable, taking inte account contractually
defined terms of payment and exduding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government except to the extent stated
otherwise,

The company has recognized Finanoe Income on the outstanding balance of trade recewvables as a part of revenue from
aperations.

2.4 Interast Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized oot or at fair valee through other comprehensive incoma, intergst income
iz recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest Income Is included In finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

2.5 Taxes on Income

Current Tax

The income k2w expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable only current period’s taxable income based on the applicabie
income tax rete adjusted by changes and deferred tax astets and liabilities attributable wo temporary differences and to unused tax
foses. The currant tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially énected &t the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for finandat statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax assets is realized or the deferred tax iabilities is sattied.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it i no longer
probable that suffichent taxable profit will be avaliable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognited
deferred tax psselsSiF re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxabile grofitswitl aifow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Ceferred tax refating to ivems recognized outside profit or loss = recognized cutside profit or boss (elther in other cosmiprehensive
imcome or in eguity]. Deferred tax items are recegnized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
Bauity.

Deferrad tax assets and deferrad tax liabilities are offset if & legally enforceable right axists to set off current tax assets agalnst
current tax Habilities and the deferred taxes reldate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Pinimium alternative tak (MAT) credit & recognized as defesred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convinclng evidence
that the company bl pay normal Income tax during the specified period. such asset ks reviewed at each balance sheet date and
the carrying amount of MAT cradit asset is written down 1o the extend thera is no longer the convincing evidenca to the effect
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the spedfied period .

2.6 Fareign Currency Transactions

The company’s financal statements are presented in IR which s also the company's funcional currency. Foreign currency
transactions sre recorded on Initial recognition |n the functional currendy. Using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction,
at each balance sheet date, foresgn currency monetary lkems are reported wsing the dosing exchange rate. Exchange differences
that arise on settlement of monetary tems or on reporting at each balance sheet date or the company’s monetary items &t the
closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items which are carried at
historical cost denominated In a foreign currency are reported wsing the sxchange rate at the date of transaction.

2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and other short term highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
charges in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows and cash equivaients consist of cash and short-tarm depesits, as defined above.
Mot of cutstanding bank overdralts as they are considered an Integral part of the company’s cash management.

2.8 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per shase are caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the pericd attributable to eguity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss fer the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potentlal equity shares except when the results would be antidilutive,

2.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation {legal or constructive] &s a result of a past event, It is
probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of prafit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted wsing a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
sppropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recagnized as a flnance cost.

Provisions are raviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. if it is no longer probable that
an outllow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requined to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
& contingent liabiBity is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose exdstence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
nmmmnqm l_'l'l-il'- uncertain future events beyond the control of the company of & présent obdigation which is mot
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recognibed becauss it i4 not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation, & contingent liability
akso arlses inextremely rare cases where there is a Habillty that cannof be recognized because 13 eannot be measured redlably.
Information on contingent labdites s disclosed In the notes to the finznclad statements, unkess the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying ecenomic benafits is remote,

A contingent asser is & possible asset that arises fram the past events and whose exisience will be confirmed by the ocournence or
non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the company. Contingent assets are not
recagnized but are disclosed in the finandal statemeanis.

Prowisions, contingent lizbilities, contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
2.10 Sabes/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expe nses

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
pakd is recognized as part of the cost of acguisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, & applicable- When receivables
and payables are stated with the amoent of tax included, Thenet amount of tax recoveratle from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is Included as pert of receivabies or payables In the balance sheet.

2.11 Barrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly sttributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessanily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for s intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other bormowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Barrowing costs consist of interest and aother costs that en entity Incurs In connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also induedes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

2.12 Employee Benefits

Provident Fund: The contribution to provident fund Is In the nature of defined contribution plan, The Company makes
contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Micellaneous Provisions Act,
1952, The contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expensa in the period in which services are rendered.

Gratuity [Funded): Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The oost Is determined using the projected unit aredit method
with actuarial valuation being carried at cash at each Balance Sheet dite by an independent actuary. The retirement benefits
obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of defined benefit obligation as edjusted for recognized
past service cost Actuarial gains and lesses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they
QLo

All emploves benefits payable whally within twelve months rendering services are classified as shost term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the éxpected cast of bonus,
ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employes renders related sendice.

Payments to defined contribution retirernent benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered the
service entitiing them 1o the contribution.

2.13 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finandial asset of one entity and a financial liabdlity or equity indtrument of
another entloy.

Finarcials Asset

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financiad assets are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumant, The compary
determines the dassification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All finandal assets are recognized initially at fair value plus
transaction cobts thal ace directly attributable to the scquisition of the financial asset except for financial assets classified as fair

valug m@@é'ﬁ:r foss.




Subsegquent Measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financlal assets are classified in three categaries:
{1} Financial Asset at amortized cost

{li}Financial Assat at Fair Value through QO [FYTOC)

(lii)Financial Asset at Fair value through PEL (FYTPL)

The subseguent measurement of flnancial asset depends on their dassification. The clasification depends on the company's
business model for managing the finandal assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial Asset at Amoartized Cost
Financiad Asset’ is measured ot the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met;
{al The asset iz held within 3 business model whote abjective is to hold asets for coliecting contractual cash flows, and

(b} Cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest.

After indtlal measuremient, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate [EIR)
method. Amortized cost s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on aoguisition of asset and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIRL Income from these financial assets is included in interast income using the effective Interest rate
method.

Financial Asset at Fair value through OCI [FVTOCI)
Financial Asset” is classified as at the FYTOC if both of the following criteria are met:
[a) The objective af the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and seffing the financal assets, and
{B] The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interast. Financial Asset induded within
the FWTOCH category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements: are
recognized In the other comprehensive income (0C1).

Fimanclal Asset at Fair Valwe through P&L
FVTPL is @ residual category for Finandial Assets. Any financial asset, which doss not meet the criteria for categorization as a1

amortized cost or as FYTOCL, s classified &5 a1 FYTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a Finandlal asset, which otherwise meets amorized cost or FUTOC criteria, as at
FYTPL. Howewver, such election i allowed only IF dolng so reduces or eliminates @ measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘acoounting mismatch').

Equity Instruments

Al equity Inwestrmants in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair valua, The company may make an irmevocable election to
present in other comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the Fair value, The Compary makes such election on an Instrument
by-instrument basis. The dassification is made oninitial recognition and is irrevocable,

Iif the growp decides to dassify an equity instrument as at FVTOO, thea all Fair value changes on the instrument, exchuding
dividends, are recopnized in the 001,

De-recognition of Financial asset
A fimancial asset {or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of a growp of similar financial assats) is primarily
derecognized when:

i] Therights to receive cach flows from the asset have expired, or

i} The company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flowes from the assat

i) The company retaans the contractual rights to received cash flows from the financial asset but assumes a contractual

obligation o pay cash flows to one or more recipients,

Where the company has transferred the asset, the company evaluates whether it has vansferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownepshil 8Fthe financial assets. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not
transferrad subl'!tanﬂn’rrﬂmhm rewards of ownership of the financisl asset, the financial set is not derecognized.
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Where the entity has neither rensferred a finencial asset nor retaing substantialty all risks and rewards of ownership of financial
assats, the financial asset Is derecognized If tha company has not retained controd of the ascet, Where the company has retalns
control of the financial asset, the asset s continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing invalwement in the financial asset

Impairment of Financial Assets

In pir Ind AS 1009, the company appdies eapected credit loss (ECL) model for measuremant and recognitien of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
{a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost 8., loand, debt securities, depogits, trade receivabies and bank
balance.
{b] Financial gssets that are measured as at FYTOO
{c] Leaserecesvables under ind AS17
{d) Trade receivables or any contractual nght to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
wilthin the scope of Ind AS 115/ referred to as ‘contractual revenue recefvables’ In these illustrative financial statemants)
(el Lpan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
(fl Financizd guarantee contracts which are net measured as at FVTPL

Far recognition of impairment loss of financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant ingrease in the credit risk since initial recognithon, IF credit risk has not increased significantly, 11-month ECL & used to
provide for impairment loss. if credit risk has increzsed significanty, lifetlme ECL is used.

In & subsequent period, If credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since Initial recognition, then the company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-menth ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the ewpected credit losses resulting from all possible default events ower the expected life of & financial
instramsant.

Financlal Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial Habilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. The
company determines the classification of finandal liability at initial recognition. All financial labifities are recognized inftlally at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except for financlal llabilities
claszsified as fair valee through profit or loss

Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financlal llabilities are classified In two categores:

Financial Liakilities at Amortized Cost

After Initlal recognition, interest-bearing Ioans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or boss wihen the llabilities sre derecognized as well as through
the EIR amortization process, Amortized cost is caloulated by taking inte sccount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is incuded as finance costs in the stabement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilites Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial abilites at fair vahee through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upan initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial fabilities are dassified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statemant of financial-pesition at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in finance income or finance costs In the

statement of profit _
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De-recognition

A financial fiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financlal Habifity (s replaced by another from the same lender on substantialy different terms, or the terms of an existing lRabFity
are substantially modified, such an eachange or modification is treated as the desrecognition of the ariginal lizbility and the
recognition of a new [ability, The difference in The respective carrying amawnts is racognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date,

Fair wadiee is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald 1o transfer a llability In an arderly transacthon between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measwremaent ks based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or ramafer the fiability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiity,

The principal or most advantageows market must be accessible to the company.

A falr value measwrement of a non-financlal asset takes Into account a market participant’s abllity to genemate economic benafits
by using the asset In is highest and best use or by selllng it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The entity uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of reievant chservable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and [Eabilities for which fair value i3 measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hieranchy, described as follows, based on the lowest lewel Input that |s significant to the falr value measurement a3 a whole:

Level 1: Quoted [upadjusted) market prices in active markets for [dentical assets or liabilities

Level 2; Valsation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement s directly ar
indirgctly observable

Lewvel 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is wnobservable

For the purpose of fair vafue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & Fabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteriztics and the risks of the asset or Eability and the level of tha fair value hierarchy as explained above,

2.14 Government Grants

Gowernment grants {except those existing on transition date] are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attsched conditions will be complied with, When the grant refates to an sxpenss item, it is recognized as
income on a systematic basis over the pericds that the relaled costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When
tha grant relates to an asset, It is recognized as Income In equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset,

When the company recelves grants of non-monetary assets, The asset and the grant are recorded at falr value amounts and
rélesied to the statement of profit or loss over the axpected wseful life in a pattemn of consumption of the benefit of the
underlying asset by equal annual instaliments.

3. Significant Estimates, Judpments and Assumptions

Tha preparatien of financial stataments requires management to exerclsa fudgment In applying the company’s accounting pollcies.
It 2l requires the useof EStimated and assumptiong that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilithes, income and eapenses
and the atl'-nmpﬂn'ﬂﬂg :ﬂaqu'&._llm:ludhg disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.




PMC Gomti Highways Private Limited
CIN U45205UPZ020PTCL 28041
Niotes to the Financizl Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

2. Property, Plant & Equipments (¥ In Lakhs]
Computar
Particulars oA Total

Gross Carrying Value

At April 01, 2024 - .
Addition During the Year 010 0.10
|Disposal / Adjustments during the year - -
#s At March 31, 2075 0.10 0.10
Apcumulated Depreclation

At April 01, 2024 = =
Addition During the Year 0.02 Doz
Disposal / Adjustments during the year - =
As AF March 31, 2025 0.02 002
et Carrying Value as at Marnch 31, 2025 0.08 b.o8

il f = iv




PMC Gomiti Highways Private Limited
CIN U45209UP0X0FTCL 28041

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 3 ; Other Non Currant Financial Assets

[T i takhs]
Agat As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Services Concession Aeceivables 53,303 30 5112693
Total| 53303.25 61,126.93
Mote 4 : Other Noa Current Assets
{% in lakhs)
#s at As at
i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Tax Deducted at Source-Income Tax 1.076.58 -
VES5T Imput Tax Credit 4,133 .34 #,968.15
Tatal 5,.209.91 856215
Mote 5 : Trade Recelvables
(T in lakhs)
As &t As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 11, 2024
Il.lnd'hputad Trade Receivables- Considered Good
Mational Highways Autharity of Indsa 54.87 6117
Total 54,87 6147
A Et s at
Trade Recaivably Ageing Schadile i March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Less than & Moths 5487 6147
& Moths to 1 Year . 5

|Undisputed Trade Recelvables- Considered Good

1 Year to 2 Years
2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

|Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which Have Significant Increase

Less than & Moths
& Moths ko 1 Yaar
1 Year to d Years

2 Years to 3 Years
bore than 3 Years

|Undisputed Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired

Less than 6 Moths
& Moths to 1 Year
1 fearto & Years
2 Yesrs 1o 3 Years
More than 3 Years

|Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good

Less than & Moths
& Mothe 1o 1 Yaar
1 Year to 3 Years
2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Recelvables- Which Have Significant increase

Less than 5 Moths
& Moths to 1 Year
1 Year 1o 2 Years
2 Yaarsto 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Recehvablos- Credit impained

Less than & Moths
& Moths to 1 Year
1 Year vo 2 Years
2 Yaars [0 3 Yaars
higre than 3 Years

0P

.



PHC Garnti Highways Private Limited
CIN UAS209UF2030PTC128041
Motes o the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Note & : investmenis

(¥ In lakhs)
Asat As at
Parthoulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investment n Mutual Funds 1,475 52
Tatal 1.479.52 -
Particul Az at As at
March 31, 20325 March 31, 2024
Appregate Book Value of Quated Irvestments 145563 =
Apgregate Markst Value of Quoted lnvestments 1,479.57 -
Aggregate Book Value of Unguoted Imesiments - =
ale Impairment in Value of Investments -
Note 7: Cash and Bank Balances
¥ in lakhs)
Particul As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 51, 2024
Balances with Bank 12347 20735
Fixed Deposits [Original maturity bass than three manths) 4,350.00 i
Totaf| 4.473.47 207.35
Mote 8 @ Other Current Assets
(X In takhs)
A5 at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prepakd Expenses .36
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 51.18 -
Agvance to Vendor 0,058 .
G5T on Mobilizateon Advanca - 015
Advance income Lax 157.00
Other Advance 0.0z -
55T Cash Ralance 15874 11891
FGST Input Tax Credit 1.281.59 -
e Total 2,B56.54 119.06




PHEC Gomti Highways Private Limited
CIN U45209UPZ020PTC12B8041
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 3025

Note 9 : Share Capital
{% in lakhs)
As at As at
Farticulars
: March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Authorised
7,15,00,000 [PY 7,15,00.000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each 7.150.00 7.150.00
Equity Shares - Bsued, Subscribved & Paid up
i k 7,131.00 7.131.00
Riotes 9.1
{a] Recenciliation of the Shares Qutstanding at the Beginning and at the End of
the Reporting Year
As at As at
Rarticulrs March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Crpening Batance 7,.13,20,000 537,770,000
lssued During the Year - 1,75,40,000
Cutstanding at the End of the Year 7,13,20,000 7,13 10,000
Detalls of Shares Held by Promotors
Rl Aramatrs As at March 31, 2025
Mo of Shares % Holdings
PHC Infratech Limited 10 0%
PNC Infra Holdings Limited 7,13.00,990 100%:
As at March 31, 2024
Mame of Fromoters ad
Mo of Shares % Holdings
PHC Infratech Limited 10 0%
PMC Infra Holdings Limited 7,13,00,990 100%:

Rights and Restrictions Attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per chara. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share held. In case any dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors the same is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensulng Annual General Meeting, except in the case of Interim Dividend. There are restrictions attached to
Equity Shares in relatson tp the term loan taken by the company pursuant to loan agreement with Constorium of lenders.

There are no bonds sharesfshare issusd for consideration other than cash and share bought back immediately preeceding Five

YEars.

@
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PHNC Gomtl Highways Private Limited
CIN LM5209UP2020PTC128041
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 10: Other Equity

Retained Earnings (T In lakhs)
Furticiine: nlml:::zuzs M:rr:::_,,lz{:ll
Opéning Balance {3582 85,29
Met Prafit for the wear {121.41) [122.11)
Clasing Balance {15723} §35.83]
Retained Earnings

This camprise Emﬂlp:n?‘! undistributed profit after taxes, -



PNC Gomtl Highways Private Limited
CIN U45209UP2020FTC128041
Hotes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 11 : Mon Current Borrowings
(T In lakhs)
A at As at
g March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Tarm Lidn 51LE10.34 52, 70029
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debits {Refer Note Nao 13} 3495 63 3434970
48,314.72 48,260,650
Unsecured
Ursecured Loan lrom Related Party® 685100 6,851.00
| Total 5516572 56,111.60

*HRefer Note No.-25

MNature of security and tarms of repayments for long term borrowings:-
[A] Nature of securlity against term loans -

(1§ First charge on all the Company’s immowable assets) mavable sised | pacept project assets), f any , bath present and future.

[ii} First charge over all revenue and receivables of the Company’s from the project or otherwise.

[Hii} First charge ower the rights, title and interest of the Company's related to the project from all contracts, insurances, licences, in to and

othear all project agreemant.

{k} First charge ower all the banks accounts of the Company, the Escrow accaunt , sulb sccounts Including major malrtenance account, debt

LEFVICE FESEre JODOURL.
{w) First charge on all intangibles af the borrower save and except the project asssts

{wi} & first charge by way of assignment or otherwise creation on security interest in afl the right, titile, interest, benalits, claims, and

{Wiil) Medge of shares held by the promatar and oF any other person aggregating to 305

Wote- The aforesadd shall be collectively reforred fo the "Security™, The above security will rank pari passu interse amongst the lenders,

|8} Terms of Repayment

{i] 26 unegual half yearly installments commencing after 7 months from date of Scheduled Commercial Dperation date |

(B} Unsecured loan taken is interest free and shall be repayable subject to prior approval of lenders after complying the conditions as

stipulated in their sanction,

Mote 12 : Provisions

Asat As at
P March 31,2025 |  March 31, 2024
Pravision Tor Gratuity B.25 -
Provaion for Leave Encashment 1.567 -
Total .93 -
Mote 13 : Current Borrowings
{¥ in lakhs)
Asat Az at
Particulars
March 31, 2035 March 31, 2024
Sacured
Current Maturity af Long Term Delbits 3.49563 3,434.70
Unsecured Loan = . 00,00
! Total 3,495.63 4,239.70




PNC Gomtl Highways Private Limited
CIN U452 00UPXIZDPTCIZE041
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mate 14 : Trade Payable

[T In lakhs)

P l.-r::;:ms m::::: 2024
Totad owtstanding dues of creditors other than micno, small and medium antereprisesh 104.59 2,552.72
Total) 104.59 1,550.72

* The disclosure in redpact of the amount payabis 5 enterprises which have provided poads and senvices 18 the Cormpany ard which qualify
under the definitian of micre and small enterprises i defined under Micra, Samall snd Medium Development At 2006 has been made in the
financial statement as at March 31, 2025 based on the information received and available with the compary. On the basis of such
infarmation, no inlereet 4 payable to ary microsmall and medium entenprises. Auditors have refied upon the Informations provided by the

Compary.
# includes Re.T6, 75 Lakhs payabie to related party {P/Y Ry 243183 Lakhs] Refer Note Mo 25

The Company s exposure tocurmency and llguldity risks related to the trade payable s disclosed note no-27

A at AS &t
Trade Payables Ageing schedula Period ! snax March 31, 2024
MISBAE Otal Year - -
1 Yearto 2 Years =
I Years to 3 Years
Miore than 3 Years - =
Total af MSME = .
Cithers Oto 1 Year 104.59 2,552.72
1 Year to 2 Years - -
2 Years to 3 Years -
igre than 3 Years - =
Total of Others 104,55 2,552.72
Disoputed dues of MSME Otol Year - -
1 Yearto 2 Years =
2 Years o3 Yaars
Niore than 3 Years - "
Total of Disputed dues of MSME -
Disoputed dues of Others Oto 1 Year
1 Yiear 1o 2 Years -
1 rears o 3 Years
More than 3 Years -
Total of Disputed dues of others -
Mote 15 : Other Currént Financial Liaklities:
& h'l-'-l“‘lil
Ag at A at
Fen March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Retention Payable® 026 311049
Salary Payahble 14,159 o1z
Independent Enginesr Feas Payable 3183 3RS
GAT Retention Pay AC 25.00 0.10
Audit Feas Payable ' 0.5
Other Payables 055 -
Total) T1.54 BEB.DG
*Includes B5.1.22 lakhs payable to related party (B/Y RB=.215.98 Lakhs)- Refer Mote Ma25
MNote 16 ; Other Current Liablities
(¥ in takhs)
sicul Asat Ad at
= March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutogy Dues 2,64 B.20
Mobiization Advance from MHAI - 0a
Total| .64 9.12 |
@:L-—‘" QQV___ I '| o
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CIN U45209UPI020PTC12E041

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Note 17 : Prowvisions

(¥ in lakhs)
As at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2025 flarch 31, 2024
Ohers-
Prowision for Income Tax 1,330.15 BE.I9
Prowviseon For Expenses J0.78 -
Provision for Grataity LTGE -
Provision for Leave Encashment 0.57 ¥
'I'-Hl!l 1,353.25% BE.Z29
Mote 18 : Revenus From Dparaticn
{¥ in lakhs)
scul Year ended Year anded
i March, 2025 March, 2024
Construction Revenue 610.01 1781149
Finance Income on S&rvice Conceddnn Receivable 5,723.96 g 11101
Total| '[_,!.!!.!? 22 92350
Nete 19 @ Other Incorma
¥ in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
st e March, 2025 March, 2024
interest on Flaed Deposits 5687 -
Gainiloza) en Redemption of Mutual funds 176.65 51.57
Gainf{los) fair Valuation of Mutual funds 3488 1_1‘-9'5|
Total| 157.40 EE.BY
Note 20 ; Employee Cost
[¥ in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Partioulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Salary & Wages 145.17 0.50
Total| 14647 .60




PHC Gomtl Highways Frivate Limited
CIN U45209UP H020PTC12E041

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 21 : Finance Cost

¥ in lakhs)
Yaar endiod Year ended
Particulars .

March, 2025 March, 2034
interast Enpenses on bobilization Advance = £1.3%
Interest on Term Loans 4 BO5.69 447435
Bark Charges 1551 1319

Total| i, EZ1.20 4,508.93
Note 22 Other Expanses
{1‘ in lakhs}
Year ended Year ended
Particulars

March, 2025 March, 2024
Construction Expenses” B81.33 17.5907.58
Legal & Professional Charges o.B5% 447
Electricity Charges 131,568 gr.43
Internet Charges 031 053
Labour Cess pald ac 191 -
G5T Expenses i [{ERE 0]
(hher Site Expensed .26 0udd
Hire Charges 5238 1183
Tedephone Expencses 1.99 A3
Baundit Fees 250 1.00
Subicontracting Experses 151.62
Insurance Expenses 5331
Miscellaneous Expenses 94,36 =
| . Total| 1,185.54 18,033.18

*excecuted by retited p;m{m Mote No_25)

&
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Motes to the Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 23: Earming Per Share
[T in lakhs Expect ERS)
As Al As at
Parthculars M 31 2095
[a} Profitf{loss) Avaitable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In lakhs) {12141} (122.11)
[b] Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 713.10 ca8.47
¢ } Nominal Yalue of Equity Shares (in ¥ 10.00 10.00
((d) Basic and Diluted Earnings F-lrihref[l:li?ibl (Er ﬁ (0.17)] [0.15)

Mote 24 : Operating Segment Information

The Company operates in anly ane segment, namehy “Infrastructure Devicpment on Hybrid Annuity Model® hence there are na
regortable segments under Ind A5-108 "Segment Reporting’. Hence, separate business segment information is not applicable.

z v %

——

There is only one w’&ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬂ@mnr: than 10% of the total revenue,

L

%,

B
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 25: Related Party Transactions
(A}  List of Related Parties

{a] Parent Entity

Ownership Interast
MNama Type As at As at
March 31,2025 flarch 31,2024
= immediate Holding
IFHCInrra Holdings Limited 100.00% 100uD0s
Company
|FI'+EInFralerJ1 Limitad* Uitimate Holding - i
*holds 10 Equity Shares.
(B} Transactions Between Related Parties
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.
(¥ In lakhs)
Mature of Trapsaction Yaar Ended Year Ended
5r. Nao March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 |EPC Contract & Utility Shifting
PHC Infratech Limited 610,01 17.,B11.49
2 Share Capital lssuad
PHC Infra Holdings Limited . 1,754.00
3 Hire Charges
PHC Infratech Limited 1.3
4 Purchase of Material
PHC infratech Limited 24.60 =
§  |Uneocured Loan taken
PHC Infratech Limited 1,687.00
(C ) Balance Dutstanding at the End of the Year:-
(¥ In lakhs)
Asat Bz at
5r, No Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
1 Trade Payables
PHE Infratech Limited 7675 2,431.83
2 Retentian Payable
PHMC Infratech Limited 1.12 316.54
3 Unsecured Loan
PHC Infratech Limited 6,851.00 6,851.00
4  |Unsecured Loan {Short Term )
PHL Infratech Limited BOO0.00
{ D} Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel [T in lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
i [ rial Personnel
i Ky Mg i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
1 Rahul Awtani 1.44] 144

{E) Terms and Conditions

The transattions with the related parties are made on term equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The
assessment s under taken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and In the markst

in which the @f‘mm operates. All Outstanding balances will be settled In cash,

=

2 o%
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Mot 26 ¢ Falr Valus Mossistemant

On Comparision by class of carming amount and Fair value of the company's. inendal instremends. the carfying amauns af the financial Fstrumens ressomably approsimates fake walue.

Fnancial Instrisments by Category

[¥ in lakhs|
e As ot March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amnortised Cost FWTPL FUTOC Amortised Cost FUTPL FYTOCI
| Fnanscial Agist
| Sersice Conpesaion Receivable 53,303.29 . . B112653 = 5
urrer Trade Recehnabie 54,87 - 6117 r e
ImsestrsEats in Mufual Fund . 1drasd = & £ 3
and Bank Balances FRLER 1) . # 0735 3 E
57.RILET 1,474.52 - 61,9544 - -
56.661.34 i ! 6,351.29 . .
10455 . . 2.55172 7 &
7154 38605 i g
55,038.47 i - 63, 290,06 . .

1) Fair Walwe Hierarchy
This section explaing the judgements and estimates made in determirdng the faic vadues of the Bnancial nstruments that are meagured a1 amortised cost ard far which Beir valees are disclosed in financial
statements. To provide an ndicetion about the rellability of Inputs used in determining falr values, the groump has classified i firenacial instruments ino thiee Evels presciilbed under ke ancouwnting
standards.
The Fallowing table prosides the fair value meassement bisrarchy of Company’s asiet and Rabiliteed, grouped inta Level 1 ta Level 3 a5 described bakow -

Level 10 Duoted (unadjusted) market prices in active marioets for dentical assets ar Kabilities.
Level 2: Waluation technigues for which the lowest level inpet that is significant to the fair value measurernent is directly o indisectly sbitorvakile,
Level 3: Waluation sechnigues far which the lovwest livel inpal that is significant to thie fair value measuremond |5 unobsermble

{2 I kakchs)
Falr Value Mbessirement using
Sigreticant  Slgilcant
Particulars mr‘:‘: Cusdied Prica in Obaervable Unobservable
Active Marior nputs Inputs
fLewel 1) {Level 2) {Lewel B
&) Financlal Assets and Labdlities Measurad ot Falr Value at March 51,
2025
Irveetrnant i Mutusl Fund 1470532 L4785 . .
{8} Finarckal Assets and LabBities Measured at Amortised Cost for . -
Which Fabr Values are Disclosed at March &1, 2015
[{i) Finameial Assais
Service Concesslon Recelvatle 53 303,29 . 53,303,259 .
= Total 54, 70280 1,479,523 53,3002 -
|{H] Firancial Labilities o
Barrawings WA 56,661.34 - 58,661.34 _
=) Total LEG61.34 3 50,661.34 A .
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Motes to the Financal Statements for tha Year enddad March 31, 2025

{F I Fakhs
Falr Yalse Measaremend sl
Clrving A SigniTant L'Tlﬁl'ﬁ_
Parthcutars varch 31, 2024 Crsoted price I observable unocbservable
Active Markost Inputs Irpids
(Level 1) {Lewad 2] {Lewvel 3}
(i} Finarscisd Assets amd Labilites Measured at Falr Value at March 31,
2029
Imestment in Mutual Fund - - -
(8] Fimancial &Assets amd Llabdnies Reasuresd an Amortised Cost Tor . . - .
Which Falr Values are Disclosed at March 31, 2024
{1} Financial Assets
Service Contesiian Recekalle fi1126.93 61,126.93 =
R Tatal| £1,126.93 - 61,126.95 -
(€@} Financial Uabilities
Borrowings B0,351.25 G351 :
Tartal| 60,351.29 - 6i0,351.29

(8 Valuation Technigues ted 1o Determine Fair Value

The: Comparry waintaing polices and procedures 1o value financial assets or firascial liabilises using the best ard most refesant data avaifable. The falr values of the Sinancial assets and liabilithes ane
Included &1 the smouwnt that would be meceived to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability i an ordedy transaction beteseen market participants 81 the meEssurement dale

Thee Following Method and SBssumptions ars sed to Estimato Fair Values:
The Carrying amownts of trade payables. short ferm borroadngs, cash and cach eguivalents, short term depositsfretentions, expenses payable ete are consldered to be their fair value | due to their short

LEriT) Astane,

Lang-term lixed-rate and variable-rate receheables [ borrowings are evaluabed by the Company based on paramséters such aa inberedk rtes, specific cowntry rdk factors, credil risk and other ik
characteristics. For borrosdng Tair value s determined by wsing the discounted cash Row (DCF] method wsing discont rate that refiects the bsuer's hoerowings rate. Risk of non-performance for the

company & considerad io b irsignificant in valuation,

The air value of trade I'Ettlkl'ﬂ_:rlt'!-_. setarity deposite snd retentiord ahe evalusted an parameters Such as inerest rabe and other rsk Bactors, Fair value is Being detesmoned by using the dacoanted cash flce

[DCF)

Qs

Financial assets and IﬂE:Itlﬁ mur:rd ai fair valug and the carrdng armount ks the Tair value,

P o

-



PHNC Gomti Highways Private Limited
CIN Ua5209UPZ020PTC128041
Maotes to the Finanda| Statements for the Year ended PAareh 31, 2025

Mote 27 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's principal financial Hab®itles, other than dechatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The maln purpase of these financial lisbslithes ks to mansge finances

for the Company’s operations. The Compary principal financial asset includes loan , trade and other receivaliles, and cash and short-term deposits thet arlse directly from its operations,
The Company’s activities are expesed to market risk, credit fisk and [hguldity risk.

. Market Risk
Barkoet risk is the risk that the fair vabue or futune cash flows of a fimancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise thres types of risk:
currency rate risk, interest rate risk snd other price risks, such as squity price risk and commedity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include lpans and borrowings,

depaosits, investments, and derivative financlal instruments.,

(a)

b

ic]

interest Rate Risk
interest rate risk Is company’s cash flow and profit on account of moversent in market interest rates, For the company intérest risk arises mainky from Interest bearing bormowings

which are at floating rates. To miticate interest rate risk, the company clasely monitors market risk.
il Interast risk peposure

Az at

P March 31, 2025

Variable rotg borrowings 51.810.34 52,700329

{1} interest rate Sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a ressonably possible change in interest rate on that partion of borrowing affected. With all othar variable held constant, the

(¥ in lakhs)

narticulirs increase/decrease Eﬂtﬂnn::ﬂ‘t

{March 31,2025 +50y-50 -2559.05,255.05

[March 31,2024 +51)/-50 26350/ 263,50

Forelgn Currency Risk

The Comgany doas not operatas intarnationally and as the Company hag not abtained By leredgn currency loare and akso doesn't have any forsign currency trade payables and
foreign recevaliles outstanding therefore, the company is not exposed to any forelgn eschange risk,

Price Risk
The company exposure 1o price risk arises from investments in mutual fund at the current year ond. These investments are actively traded in the market and are held for short
pesiod of time. @x Y

o |

.- . -j.r’ll ?"1(‘ ‘ﬁ : (- 7
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Motes te the Fimancial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025

.,

Credit Risk

Credit risk srises from the possibility that the cownterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial less to the company. To manage this, the Comgany
periadically assassas the financial reliabélity of customers, taking Inte account the financial conditions, current economic trends, and anabgsis of histarical bad dabts and ageing of
BOCounts recelvabie,

Tise comgany has anly one trade receivables that a company has are against the the grant to be recieved, which i a goverment autharity Aherefare comgany & not exposed to any
credit risk. Credit risk on cash and cash eguivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial nstitutbons with high credit ratings essigned by international
and domestic credit rating agencies,

Ligusidity Risk

Liguidiny Fisk is defined ag the risk that company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on tima or at & reasonable price, The Company’s abjective i to at all Bmes maintaln
optimum levels of lguidity to meet lis cash and collateral requirements. The Company's managerment is responaibie for liquidity, funding as well as settbement management. In
addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senlor mansgement. Management monitors the company’s net liquidity poesition through rolling, forecast on
the basis of expected cash flows

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of finencial labillithes at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments;

{T in lakhs)
IaElon More than One
As at March 31, 2025 Carrying Amount On Demand O Vi Year and Loss than  More than 3 Years Total
Threa Yaar
Borrowings 5B,661.34 - 349563 29887 4786685 B8.6601.34
Trade payaees 104.59 . 1n4.EQ : - 104 £4
Other Liabilities 7254 - TLE4 - - Ti54
Tatal 58,838.47 - 3,672.75 7,298.87 4786585 58,038.47
{T in lakhs)
s i More than One
s st March 31, 2024 Carrying Amount Gn Demand Pl ‘I‘u: Year and Loss than  More than 3 Years Total
Three Year
Hurmwhgs E9.551 29 - &,239.70 7.047.18 48 26441 59.551.29
Trade payables 255272 - 255272 - - 1.552.72
Other Liabilitieg I86.05 - 385,05 - - J86.05
Total . 52,490.06 = FA78.47 704718 1 62,4900

@ J QQ_J j 0 L
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Mote 28 : Capital Management

{a) Risk Management

The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management i to maximize the shargholder value and also maintain an optimal
capital structure 1o reduce cost of capital. in order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of

dividend paid 1o shareholders, return on capital to shareholdaers, Bsue new cthares or sell assats to reduce debis

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes In economic condition and the
requirements of the financial covenants, if any, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus debt.

(¥ in lakhs Expect Ratio]
As at As at
Particula

e March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Total Borrowings (excluding unsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No-29) 5181034 54,700.29
Less- Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,473.47 207.35
Dabt [A) 47,336.88 52,492.94
Equity Share Capital (including unsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No- 13,582.00 13,962.00
Other Equity (157.22} -35.82 |
Total Equity (B) 13,624.78 13,945.18
Debt to Equity ratio [A/B) 3.41 3.76
Mote-29 Concession Arrangements- Main Features
il Name of the Concession PHC Gomtl Highways (P) Umlted
li} Deseription of Arrangements Development of four laning from km. 47.930 to km 107.680

lagdishpur- Faizabad section of NH-330 A "0n Hybrid Annuity
rlodel” In the state of Uttar Pradesh .

Iii) Slgnificant Term of Arrangements Period of Concession: 15 years from COD
Cionstruction Period © 730 days
Remuneration: Annuity, interest, O&
Imvestrment grant fram Concession grantor: Yes
Infrastructure retusn to grantor at end of Concassion ; Yes
Investrment and renewal obligation: No
Repricing dates- Half vearly for D&M basis upon which
regricing or re negotiation is determined : Inflation price
index as defined In concession agreement.

Mote-30 Unsecured loan of T6E51.00 Lakhs taken by the company from related party( Uitirmate Parent Company] & in eu of
equity as per terms of Concession Agresment dated August 05,2020, which is interest free.

Mote-31 Detalls of loan given, investments made and guarantee given covered U/ 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
The Company is engaged In the business of providing infrastrucal facifities as specified under Schedule W1 of the Companies Act

2013, (the "Act®) and hence the provision of section 186 of the Act related to loan/ guarantees given or securities provided are
not applicable to the Company. There are no Investments made by the Company during the period,

[the previous period have been regroupped /rearranged, whereever necessary to confirm the current year

_ﬁ% b
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Notes to The Financial Stetements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 33 -The disclosura is reguired by INDAS-1% " Employee Benefits® are as under-

The Lishdity for Employee Gratuity is deteremined on acturial valuation using Projecied undt credit mathod,
The obligation are as under-

Table 1: Member Data Statistics
For the year
5.M Particwlars
= 31-03-2025 31032024
1 |Mumber of Employees LFr)
Z |Mormal Retirerment Age ] -
3 |Awerage Age {in yrs) 7.4
4 |Awerage Past Service {inyrs) 302
£ |Averspe Maonthly Sakary [in As) 13,355
6 |Future Semvice (in wrs) 22,15
7 |Weighted Average duration of DBD 1.B9
Table 2: Benefits Valued
1 |engibility All permanent emEoyees
2 |Gratuity Salary Basic Maonthly Salary
3 |Service Completed years of senvice, servioe af 6
mipnths & above is rounded a5 one year
4 | Mimirmum vesting period & Years of continuous sendoe
5 |Mormal Retirernent Benefit 15/26% Sprvice * Gratuity Salary, subject to
20,00, 000,
6 |Desth/Dizabifity in Servics Benefit Same a5 normal retinemant benefi
7 |Lesving Service Bensfit I¥ beaves after 5 years of continuous service —

Marmal Retiremnent Benefit.
I¥ beavers before 5 years of continuous senvice

Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions

Far the year !nd-h!
i Ftcduy 31032025 31-03-2024
1 |Dissount Rate 6.55% (LK
2 |Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00% D00
3 |5alary Escalation Rata (p.a.) 5.00% .00
4 |Attrition Rate {p.a.) 25,000 0.0
100% of
5 |Mortality Rate IALM 12-14 0% -of LMD
' A Mo explicit Mo eaplicit
Disability Rate
¥ v Nk 2 assumptiong assumptions
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Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

WValuation Disclosure Tables
Table 4: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (¥ in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 T 01-0%-2023 To
i PRGNS 31-03-2025 31032024
1 Defined benelit abligation at beginning of year = =
1 |Service cost 5
a. Current serdice cost 197 =
b. Fast service oost - veshed B.04 -
. Fasi service oost - unvesied -
3 |Interest expenses - -
4 |Cash fiows
a. Benefit payments from plan - -
b. Benefit payments from emphoyes =) -
4 |Actuartal Galns and Losses .
@, Effect of changes in demograghic assumptions - -
b. Effiect of changesin financial assumptions -
c. Effect of experience adjistments - -
6 [Transfer bn fOut
a. Transfer In =
b. Tranafer out - -
7 IDEﬁnel:I benefit obligation at end of year 10.01 -
Bifurcation of the present value of obligation at the end of the year [¥ in Lakhs)
Parthoulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current Obidgations 1.76 =
Mon-Current Dbligations BZ5 =
Ttal ﬂ'bvllgitll:-n 10,03 -
Table 5; Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
¥ in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
iy Fastieuian 31.03.2025 31032024
1 ||Fair value al plan assets at beginning of year =
2  |Ozher Adjustments -
3 Charges and Tanes . -
4 |Expected return on plan assets -
5 Caghflows

a. Total emngloyer's contribution
(1] Employer contributions
(i} Employer direct benefit payments
b. Benefit payments fram plan assets
. Benelit payments fram employer
Actuarial Gains and Losses on Plan Assets
6 fla, Effect of changes in financial assumiptions
b. Effect of experience adjustrients
7 [Transfer In fOut

2., Transfer In

b. Transferout
8 |Fairvalueof plan agsets at end of year
o

Actizl Return On Plan Adsets

W P
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Table 6: Ambuits recognited in the Balance Sheot

(T In Lakhs)
| 01042024 T 01-04-2023 Yo
S.No. Particulars el ae
1 |Defined benefin obligation 10.01 =
2 |Fair value of plan assets =
3 Funded status - Deficit) {Surphus) 10.01
i |Effect of asset ceiling = =
| 5 |Met defined benefit - [Liabifity]/ Asset {10.004| -
Table 7: Net Pertodic benefit cost recognized in the Pralit and Loss
[¥ in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 Ta 01-04-2023 T
S.Ma. Particulars SL.08.30%E 31008 S04
1 [Current Service Cost 1.97 -
2 |imterest Expense - Obigation . .
3 |Interest (Income) - Man Assets - -
4 |Past Serveoe Cost 8.04
5 |Met Periodic benefit cost recognized inthe P &L 10.01 -
Table 8: Ae-maasurament
{¥ In Lakhs)
articulars 01-04-2024 To 01-048-2023 T
i : 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Actuarial [Gains)f Losses on obligations = .
2 |Return on Plan Asets, excluding emount recognized in the net interess - -
3 [Changs in Asset Celling - -
4 |Re-measuremaent Costy (Crodit) for the year -
Table 9: Balance Sheet Reconchlliation
(% In Lakhs)
01-04-2024 Ta 01-04-1023 Ta
£.Mo, Particulars 31-03-2025% 31-03-2024
1 Mt defined benefit (liabilitg) asset at beginning of year
?  |Unrecopnied past sendce cost at the beginning of the year - -
31 |Expense Inthe PR L {10.01)
4 |Totsd Remeasurements included in QCI a .
5 |Emphoyer's Totad Contribution
6 |Mettransfer =7
7 |Unrecopnised paar ser 5' s el at the end of the yeer g
B {10.00)] =

Net defingd-henefit (llabiling} asset as at end of year
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Tableil: Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liability

(¥ in Lakhs)

1 |Expected employer contributions Next year 1.497

2 |Discontinuance lisbiliny 13.79
5.Mo Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation Expected Benefit

Payment

L 20XG 1.57

i 2027 1,08

3 2028 L75

4 riindt ] 1.58

5 2030 124

] 2031 - 2036 3.49
Tahla 11: Recognisticn of Past Sendce Cost

01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To

5.No. Parthculars 31 E 31-03-2024

1 |Unrecognized Fast Service Cost/[Credit] as at the beginning of the year - -

2 |Past Service Cost [Credit) for the year 804 :

3 |Past Service (Cost)f Credit recognized durlng the year B0} -

4 |Unrecognized Past Service Cost/[Credit] as at the end of year - -
Table 13: Major Categories of Plan Asssts{as a % of total Man Assets)

For the year ending

S.No. Agsat Categories 1035025 31033024

1 |Government of India Securities. 0,00 0.00%

1 |5tate Government Securities 0.00% 0.00%

i |High Cuality Corporate Bonds 0.00% .00

'] Equity shares of listed companies 0,00 0005

L |Propesty 0.00% 0005

b6 |Special Deposit Scheme 0.00% 000

7  |Funds managed by Insisrer 0.00% LD

E |Others {vo specify) 0.00% .00

5 |Total 0.00% 0.00%

Table 13: Senshthvity of Defined Benefit Obligation [DEBO) to key assumptions
The financial results are sensitive to the actuarial assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Obfigstions for Increase and

devrease from asswemed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rabed are glven below:

SN, Scenario DaD ariation
1 |Under Base Scenario 1001 {L00%
2 |Salary increase Rate - Plus 200 Basis Points 10.33 i.18%
3 Salary increase Rate - Minus 100 Basis Pointy 371 -1.02%
4 |withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 9.95 0.5TH
5 “ﬁthﬂ_@_ug_ﬂ Rate - Minws 100 Basls Points 10,06 0.57%
[ D@'Lﬂ: Fals - Plus 100 Basis Points 367 -31.38%
7 |Discbunt Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points 10.37 3.62%
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Table 14: Risk Exposure

Prowision of a defined bonefit scheme poses certam risks a5 companies take on uncertain Dng term obligations 1o make fufure
pEnsien payments as follows:

Risk if there Is 3 mismatch In the duration of]
the assets relative to the |labllities. By
matching duration with the defined benefit]
llabilithes; the company ks successfully able wo
nevtralize valustion swings caused by
interest rate movementt. Hefce comganiss
are  encouraged to adopt  asset-liability
managemaent.

[Warlations In the discount rate used o
compate the present value of the liabilities
may seem small, but In practice can have a
significant impact on the defined benefit
liglities,

Since price inflation and salary growth are

linked econcmically, they are combined for
dischoswe purposes. Aiskng salarses will often
resuft in higher future defined benefit
payments resulting in a higher present value
of liablitles especially unexpected salary
increases  provided @t management’s
diporetion may lead to estimation
uncertainties increasing this risk.

| Liability Risks
I Agset-Liability Mismatch Hisk
i i |Discount Rata Risk
1] |Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk -
Unfunded Plan Risk
|

This represents unmanaged risk and a growing Eability. There is an inherent risk here that the company mey default on
paying the banatits in adverse droumstances. Funding the plan removes volatility from the balance sheet and better
manages defined bedefit risk through increased returns

r

< P %
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Mobe 34 : The disclosure is required by INDAS- 1% “Employees Benafits® are as under-
The Rability tor Employes Leave Plan is detereminded on acturlal valuathon using Projected unlt credit method.

Table 1: Member Data Statistics
For the year ending
S.Na. Particula
s 31-03-2025 31.03-2024
1 |Number of Employees 52 -
] Mormal Retirement Age &0 -
3 |Average Age [in yrs) 37.81 "
4 FAwverage Monthly Encashment Salary 13,355 -
g Total Leave batance (In days} SO0 =
B |Weighted Average duration of DED 3.89 -
Takla 2: Benefits Valued
i Type of Plan Other Long Term Benefits
2 |Normal Retirement Age ol
3 Salary for calculation of leave encashment Basic
4  ||Salary lor caleulation of leave availment |Not Used
5 ||Type of leave valwed Privilege Leave
& Cap on leave accumudatian 45 daws
7 Encashment during employment |Mot Allowed
8 |Daysin amonth {for calculations) 30 days
g [|Mormal Retlrement Benefit 1/30 x salary x number of unuded leave
10 |Death in Service Benefit Lame as normal retiremant
11 |leaving Service Benefit Same as normal retiremant
12 [|Avaliment Pattern NA
13 |Encashment in service - Pattern HA
Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assurmptions
For the year ending
Particula
i < 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Discount Rate 6.55% 0.00%
2  |Expected Return on Flan Assels 0.00% 0.00%
3 |Salary Escalation Rabe (p.a.) 5. D0 0.00%
4 jattrivion Rate (p.a.) 25.00% 0.00%
1 100%
5 Mortality Rate MAa
il IALM 2012-14
5 7 Rage Mo explicit WA
P g " !
= % )
(@ :

N

# o
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Valuation Disclosure Tables

Table 4; Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (% in Lakhs)
M1-04-2028 Te D1-04-2023 To
e igrican 31032025 31032024 |
|Defined benefit obligation at beglnning of weas
Sannoe cost -
B. Currant seryice oo 1.97 -
b. Past service cost - vested B.04
£, Pagy servics cost - urvested
3 |ingerest espenses -
4 |Cash flows
a. Beneflt payments from plan -
b. Benefit payments from empiloyer
5 (Actuariad Galns and Losses -
a. Effect of changes in demographic axsumptions =
b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions - -
. EHect of EXpErience adjustments -
b |Transfer in fOut -
o Transher In -
b. Trandfer out -
7  |Defined benefit obligation at end of vear 1601
Bifurcation of the present valua of obligation at the end of the year (* in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-03-20325 31-03-2024
Current Obligations 1.76
Non-Current Obligationg 8.25
Total Obligation 10.01 -
Table 5: Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
¥inLa
01-04-2024 Ta 01-04-2023 To
i AN 31.03-2025 31-03-2024
1 [Faér value of plan assets at beginning of year b
2 |Other Adjpustments = o
3 [Charges and Taxes y
i |Espected return on plan assets -
g |Cashflows

a Tarsl emplayer’s eantribution

(I} Employer contributions

[ii] Employer direct benelit payments

b, Benelit payments from plan assets

C. Benefit payments from employer
Actuaria Gains and Losses aon Plan ASsels

6 [a Effect of changes in financial assumgtions
b. Effect of experience adjustments

T ransfer In fOut
a. Transfer In
b, Transfer out

B |Fair valut of plan assets at end of year

g |Actual Frtﬂum On Plan Assets
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Table 6: Amaunts recopnized in the Balance Shoct

iT in Lakhs)
. 01-04-2024 Te 01-04-2023 To
L Firvanas 31-03-2025 3103-2024
1 |Defined benefit obligatan 10001 .
2 |Fabrvalue of plan assets - -
3 |Funded status - Deficit) [Surpluz) 1301 -
4 |Effect of assef celling - -
5 |met defined banefit - [Liabllinyg)f Acser (10.01)| .
Tabde 7: Met Periodic benefit cost recognized in the Profit and Loss
(T in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
i iy 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Cuwfrent Service Cost 1.97 =
2 |interest Expense - Obligation .
3 |Interest (Income| - Plan Assets - -
4  |Past Service Cost £.04
5 |Het Periodic henzﬂtmtm_;nl:ed Inthe P &L 10,01 -
Table 8: Re-meaiure mant
[T in Lakhs}
i 024 Ta 01-04-2023 Ta
gy i s nlﬂ:nzs 31.03-2024
1 |Actsarial (Gains]d Losses on obligations . -
2 |Return on Flan Assets, escheding armount recognized in the net Interest -
3 |Change in Asset Ceiling -
4  |Re-measurement Costy [Credit) for the year -
Table 9: Balance Sheet Reconcilliation
[% in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 Ta
i Fariculan 31.03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Met defined benefit (Bability] asset at begnning af year -
2  |Unrecognised past senvice cost &t the beginning of the year . -
3 |Expense Inthe PR L [10uD1) -
4  |Total Rermeaiorements included in OO £ =
5 |Employer’s Total Contributhon -
& |Wat transfer -
r Unrel:ugnl.?.#ﬂﬂ__!erui:: cost at the end of the year - -
8 |Metd beiefit fRabibty] et as at end of yesr [10.61] -

&
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/
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Tablell: Expocted Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liability

{T In Lakhs)
1 |Expected employer contributions Nest year 197
2 |Discontinuance lizhility 13,79
5Mo Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Dbligation Expected Benefit
Paymment
1 26 187
2 227 1.98
3 PLiFL] 1.5
4 H28 1.58
5 2030 124
i 2031 - FA5 3.4%
Table 11: Recognistion of Past Service Cost
01-04-1024 To 01-04-2023 To
s Eanionon 31.03-2005 31-03-2024
1 |Unrecognized Past Service Costf{Credit) as at the beglnning of the year - -
2 |Past Service Cost [Credit] for the year .04 -
3 |Past Service {Cost) Credit recognized during the year (6.04) -
4 |Unrecognized Past Service Costf{Credit) as at the end of year -
Table 12: Major Categories of Plan Assets{as a % of total Plan Assets)
For the year ending
S.Mo. Asset Categories TR TT e e e
1 |Gowersment of Indis Secwrities 0.00% 0D
2 |State Governmant Securities 0.00% U00%
3  |High Cuakty Corporate Bonds 0.00% 000
4 |Equity shares of listed companies 0,00 000%
5 |Property 0.00%: 0uD0%
6 |ipecial Deposit Scheme 0.00% 0L00%
7 |Funds managed by Insurer 0.0 0oD0%
B |Others [to speclfy] 0.00% 0.00%
9  |[Tetal D.00H 0.00%

Table 13: Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Dbligation {D80) bo key assumptions
The financial resulis are sensithee to the actuarial assumptions, The changes to the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase and
decreaie from assurmed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are given below:

5.Na., Scenario DBO Variation
1 |Under Base Scenario 10,01 0,00k
2 |5alary Increaso Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 10.33 31E%
3 |Salary Incresse Rate - Minus 100 Basis Paints 8.71 =3.02%
4 [Withdrawal Aate - Plus 100 Basis Polnts 9.95 0.57%
5 |Withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Basis Poinis 10.06 0.57%
6 |Discount Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 967 -3,38%
7 Dlscount Bte - Minws 100 Bazis Paints 10.37 3.61%

(| @)y
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Table 14: Risk Exposure

Provision of a defined benetit scheme joses certain risks as companies take on uncertain long term obligations to make future

pension payments as follows:

Liability Risks

i Augat-Liahility Mismatch Risk

Risk if thare is a mismatch in the duration of
the asseis relative to the llabilities. By
matching duration with the defined benefit
liabilties, the company is sucoessfully able to
neutralizge valuation swings cauwsed by
Interest rate movernents, Hence companies
are encouraged o adopt asset-Rabilry

management.

i Discount Rate Rk

Variationt in the discount rete uted to
compute the present walue of the liabilities
may seem small, but in practice can have 3
ignifecant irnpact on the defined benefit|
llabilities.

m Future Salary Escalation and inflation Risk -

since price inflation and .:|.r.||arl|r l.l'l!ml'l‘]'l BiE
linked economscally, they are combined for]
disclosure purposes, Rising salaries will often
result Im higher futwe defined benefit
payments resufting in a higher present value
of Habilities especially unespacted salary
increases  prowided at  management’s
discretion may lead to  estimation
uncertainties increasing this rsk

Unfunded Plan Risk

2 This represents unmanaged risk and a growing Hability, There |5 an inherent risk here that the company may default on

man dfi

rough increased retums

parlngmehenefyw circumstances. Funding the plan removes volatility from the balance shest and bettes

By
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Mote 35 Ratios
The Fallowing are Analytical Ratios for the Year Ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Yoar ended
:; Particulars Miarch 31, | March 31, | Variances """"'“"*."'“, u:"
2028 2024 ) ;
5 it oo B8 17|  ams] ssesss| Powiopsivewodig
{Current assets divided by current liabities | SRR CormT Yo
21 |Debt-Equity Ratio |times) 1.75 378 [0.86)
{Lomg-tesm borrowings, Short-term borrewings and curment maturities
of long term bommowings excluding unsecured borrowing taken and Not Applicable
outstanding from ultimate holding company|le. PNC Infratech Umited)
diwided by total equity Including unsecwred loan taken from ultimate
hildine comeae
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times) o7s .62 22
iProfit before Interest, Tax and Exceptional item divided by Interest Not Applicabie
Expenisas togather with principad repayment of Long-term borrowings)
_4_|Return on Equity Ratia [%) | o) josmf  (02)
{Prafit after Tax divided by Total Equity, total equity abio includes) Mot Appiicabie
wnsecured [oan taken from witimate holding company l.e, from PHC]
infrateach Limited)
5 |imventory Turmower Ratio (Times] [ A, M.A,
(Coit of Goods sold divided by Mruelmmmﬁ'] Not Applicable
Cost of Goods sold = Cost of materials consumed + Contract Paid +
Construction expenies
& |Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio [Times) 013 041 (BRIT) e tod =
[Revenue from operation divided by Average Trade Receivable including) d ——
service concessioon receivable|
7 |Trade Payable Turnover Ratio [Times) 051 3.20 (a3.98)| Duetodecrease in Trade
{Puirchase divided by Average Creditor| Pavables
8 |Mat Capital Turnover Ratio [Timas) 2.02 11.06)| (IES.44) ; -
{Revenue from operation divided by working capiallworking capital| D:D:;In:i:l:ﬂ i rE
refers fo net current assets arrhved after reducing current liabiSities | -
9 [MetProfRatiof) (L66)]  {053]] 21234] Duetoincrease intax
{Profit after Tax divided by Revenue from operation) ERDENSE.
10 |Return on Capital Employed (%) 1007 7.84 8.47
(ERITDA divided by Capital employed [capital employed arived after Due bo kewer EBITDA
reducing current liabdities)
11 [Retum on Investment (%) TN R T (R ——
{Prafic after tanTotal Assets|

The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 an integral part of the these financial statements
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